
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FIFTH SESSION 
Official Records 

SECOND COMMITTEE 119tb 
MEETING 

Monday, 9 October 1950 at 10.45 a.m. 

I ... ake Success, New York 

CO NT E NT S 
Page 

Economic development of under-developed countries: report of the Economic 
and Social Council (A/ 1359) . . . . .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 

Clw.irmau: Mr. Gustavo GuTIERREZ (Cuba). 

Economic development of under-developed conn· 
tries: report of the Economic and Social 
Council (A/ 1359) 

[Item 28] * 
1. The CHAIRMAN opened the discussion on the 
first item of the Committee's agenda: the economic 
development of under-developed countries : report of 
the Economic and Social Council. 

2. Lord OGMORE (United Kingdom) described the 
question of the development of under-developed coun­
tr ies, as probably next in importance, after the question 
of aggression in Korea, of all the items before the pres­
ent Assembly. The question of financing economic devel­
opment in the under-developed countries was a vital 
factor in that problem and one of the utmost complex­
ity. It was closely related with the question of technical 
assistance fo r economic development and the two could 
not be considered in isolation. 

3. Having stressed the enormous need for technical 
assistance and financing of economic development in 
under-developed areas, and the dangers inherent in 
conditions of poverty, malnutrition, disease and fear, 
he referred the Committee to Mr. Acheson's statement 
to the General Assembly1 that the United Nations had 
the opportunity of bringing a new hope to millions 
whose most urgent needs were for food, land and human 
dignity. 

4. The Foreign Secretary of the U nited Kingdom had 
in his turn spoken of the duty of the industrially devel­
oped nations to assist the less advanced areas of the 
wor ld.2 That was the policy of the United Kingdom 
Government. It had been recently outlined in a policy 
statement of the British Labour Par ty entitled Labour 

* Indicates the item number on the General Assembly agenda. 
1 See Official Records of the Gene,.a{ Assembly, Fifth Session 

Plenary mecliKgs, 279th meeting. 
z Ibid, 283rd meeting. 

7 

and the MW Society which proposed that work should 
start immediately on the preparation of a new long­
term programme-a World Pian for Mutual Aid-to 
succeed Marshall Aid in 1952. The object of the plan 
would be to attack poverty everywhere, in developed 
and under-developed countries alike. According to that 
statement, the g reat work had begun. The U nited 
States and the United Kingdom were already making 
a very large contribution to world development. The 
United Nations also had prepared plans for technical 
assistance through the Economic and Social Council. 
All those efforts should be merged as part of the World 
Plan fo r Mutual Aid. All the free peoples of the world 
would be expected to contribute to the Plan according 
to their ability. It would be carried out through public 
as well as private investments, through national as well 
as international action and through colonial develop­
ment as \veil as through the United Nations. Its guiding 
purpose would be to help the poorer peoples to help 
themselves, and the extension of democratic self-gov­
ernment would accompany economic progress. 

5. I n the field of technical assistance, at its fourth 
session, the General Assembly had adopted an impor­
tant resolution upon the recommendation of the Second 
Committee, which in J une 1950, at the Technical Assist­
ance Conference, had become the Charter of the ex­
panded programme of technical assistance for economic 
development of under-developed countries. At the cur­
rent session the Assembly had before it resolution 
291 (XI) of the Economic and Social Council on the 
financing of economic development. Both subjects were 
inter-related and both presented difficulties, but the 
question of the financing of economic development was 
probably the more complex of the two. The Economic 
and Social Council deserved praise for the work it 
had done. 

6. The United Kingdom representative at the eleventh 
session of the Economic and Social Council had pointed 
out that his Government had had a considerable experi-

A/ C.Z/ SR.l19 



8 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Second Committee 

ence both in the territories for which it was responsible 
and in others. He had explained that during the nine­
teenth century, the United Kingdom had been the 
largest investor in many foreign countries and that in 
the twentieth century in various ways it had been 
investing large sums in the terri tories for which it was 
responsiblea. Si;x years of total war, followed by a 
period of continuous international disturbance, had 
naturally reduced the resources available for economic 
development abroad. Despite the remarkable economic 
recovery achieved by the United Kingdom since the 
war and the austerity it had imposed on itself, it would 
probably be some time before it could reswne foreign 
lending on a large scale. Notwithstanding all those diffi­
culties, the United Kingdom had made considerable 
contributions to the work of economic development. 

7. The problem was not by any means new. In the 
nineteenth century and, indeed, in the early years of 
the twentieth century, it had been solved very largely 
by a flow of private capital from the United Kingdom 
and from other countries in Western Europe. According 
to the philosophy of those times, investors had frankly 
sought the highest return on their capital whether at 
home, in the dependent territories or in foreign coun­
tries. Since then, however, the attitude of both the 
capital-exporting and the capital-impor ting countries 
had changed, but the world had not yet succeeded in 
finding new and adequate machinery to take the place 
of the nineteenth century system. 

8. T he problems cer tainly had become much more 
acute. Since 1914 ten years of war had weakened the 
economies of those countries of Western Europe which 
had been the traditional suppliers of capital to the rest 
of the world. Furthermore, the economic troubles which 
had followed the First World War had discouraged 
private investors everywhere from risking their capital 
abroad. A further difficulty was that the returns to be 
expected from investments abroad were often no greater 
than those which might be expected from investments 
at home. On the other hand, the risks of investment 
abroad were much greater. Yet another difficulty, as 
far as the United States was concerned, was that a 
substantial proportion of the existing private capital 
was in trust funds and was not available for investment 
abroad. For all those reasons, it was obvious that the 
flow of private capital in relation to existing needs could 
not be as spontaneous as it had been in the nineteenth 
century. 

9. A new agency, the International Bank for Recon­
struction and Development, had been created in 1945 
to stimulate the international flow of both private and 
governmental funds. T he United Nations could be 
proud of the work done by the Bank A significant and 
steadily increasing proportion of its loans had been 
flowing into the under-developed areas of the world; 
unfortunately, however, those loans still fell far short 
of existing needs. 

10. H e was sure that the Committee would agree that 
the first responsibility of the United Kingdom was 
towards its dependent territories. The United Kingdom 
had provided out of its Treasury a total sum of £ 120 
million- to be spent over a period of ten years, between 

' See Official Records of the Economic and Social Council, 
Eleventh Session, 382nd meeting. 

1946 and 1956, for making grants and loans to colonial 
Governments in aid of their development programmes. 
F urther, two publicly owned corporations had been set 
up for the purpose of promoting economic development. 
The Colonial Development Corporation had been set 
up in 1948 with a capital of £110 million to carry out 
projects for the development of dependent territories, 
while the Overseas Food Corporation, with a capital 
of £55 million, had the task of undertaking large agri­
cultural projects outside the United Kingdom. 

II. In addition to the aid thus directly financed by 
the U nited Kingdom taxpayer, colonial Governments 
had raised loans on the London market and private capi­
tal had moved freely from the United Kingdom to other 
parts of the sterling area. The amount of private capital 
thus involved would roughly be comparable with the 
amount which had moved through government channels. 
Many countries, which at the end of the Second World 
War had held considerable reserves of sterling, had 
since then drawn on those reserves to a greater or 
lesser extent. Drawings on those balances-and in 1949 
alone £218 million had been released- had contributed 
directly or indirectly to the financing of various invest­
ment projects. 

12. Those were considerable sums, but naturally they 
had gone mainly to countries of the Commonwealth and 
the sterling area and, in par ticular, to the dependent 
territories of the United Kingdom. Other countries, 
however, had also received financial assistance from 
the United Kingdom. Despite its balance-of-payments 
problems, the United Kingdom had perrnitted commer­
cial investments outside the sterling area on a scale 
that was at any rate of significance to the count ries 
concerned, although limits had had to be imposed. The 
United Kingdom Government had also made large 
contributions in the form of general credits and of 
grants and loans for relief and reconstruction in coun­
tries outside the Commonwealth, which, since the end 
of the war, had amounted to over £900 million. Not 
all of that could be regarded as a contribution to eco­
nomic development in a nar row sense, nor had it gone 
in general to countries which could be regarded as 
under-developed in the sense in which those words had 
been used during the Committee's discussions. Those 
payments, however, had represented both a strain on 
the resources of the United Kingdom, and in many cases 
moral obligations which it could not fail to meet. Some 
obligations of that kind would continue. 

13. Lately, on the initiative of the Australian Govern­
ment, a most interesting development had taken place 
in South-East Asia. A conference had been held at 
Sydney to discuss what aid the Commonwealth coun­
tries concerned could provide for the under-developed 
countries in that area. That conference had been fol­
lowed by meetings on technical assistance at Colombo, 
where a draft constitution for a Technical Assistance 
Bureau had been agreed upon. The third series of 
meetings under that plan had just been held in London. 
The Commonwealth Consultative Committee had dis­
cussed economic development in consultation with 
representatives from Burma, Viet-Nam, Cambodia, 
Laos, Indonesia and Thailand. T he Committee had 
already considered the report of the Colombo· meetings 
on technical assistance and had decided to recommend 
to the Governments concerned the adoption of the draft 



ll9th Meeting-9 October 1950 9 

constitution for a Technical Assistance Bureau. It had 
also considered detailed economic development pro­
grammes prepared by Commonwealth countries of the 
area. The Committee had been impressed with the mag­
nitude of the burden which the implementation of those 
programmes would place upon the countries concerned 
and the urgent need to increase their resources in 
skilled man-power and capital. The Committee had 
agreed that close liaison should be maintained with the 
United Nations agencies working in the area and that 
the International Bank should be kept fully informed 
of the position .. 

14. Traditionally there were two ways in which an 
under-developed country could finance its development. 
The first was by means of a foreign loan, secured by 
a mortgage on the country's liquid assets, usually its 
customs receipts. That process did not always commend 
itself to the public of the country concerned. The second 
was by exploitation of the farmers or peasant proprie­
tors, wringing out of them a surplus which could be 
sold for foreign exchange. Nowadays, four finance 
methods were available: private investment, direct gov­
ernment investment, outright grants or loans at non­
commercial rates and the international organization of 
finance such as the International Bank of Reconstruc­
tion and Development. It was clearly essential that the 
under-developed areas should make the maximum con­
tribution to their own development. Some of them, 
which had already advanced a considerable distance 
along the road to development, could even now do a 
great deal in that respect, and they would no doubt have 
given careful consideration to the report on methods of 
increasing domestic savings and of ensuring their most 
advantageous use for the purpose of economic develop­
ment (E/1562). The need for self-help was obvious, 
but it was equally obvious that progress of any kind 
depended largely on outside aid. 

15. The difficulties experienced had been three-fold: 
first, capital, consumer goods and technicians had been 
in short supply in recent years; secondly, there had been 
no adequate international machinery to negotiate long­
term contracts with staff, to organize and carry on re­
search, to initiate and control pilot-schemes and central 
farms with satellite, co-operative and individual hold­
ings, which was the real reason why international 
schemes had not hitherto had the success expected; 
thirdly-and that was the main problem before the 
Committee----development of under-developed areas re­
quired two entirely different types of finance. A country 
in the first stages of development needed large sums 
for projects which would have no direct financial return 
whatsoever, such as the building of roads and bridges, 
water supply, bush clearing, the provision of schools 
and hospitals. That basic work had to be done before 
any large-scale agricultural, industrial or commercial 
projects could be carried out. Private enterprise was 
usually unable to undertake that type of work because 
it offered no actual cash return, although it was essential 
to other '.York which would actually have such a cash 
return. Then there were projects which would have 
a direct, although possibly not immediate return. They 
included such undertakings as ranching, growing of 
plantation crops, large-scale agricultural projects, min­
ing, light industries and the like. 

16. Different types of financial assistance were re­
quired to meet those two types of needs. The require­
ments in respect of projects which had a direct financial 
return had been met to some extent by private invest­
ments, loans from the International Bank, and the 
Colonial Development Corporation in the territories of 
the British Commonwealth. It was quite true that the 
kind of help falling under that heading should be ex­
panded, but at least a start had already been made. Very 
little however, had been done to meet the need for 
projects which would have no direct financial return, 
although they were the essential pre-requisite for any 
economic development. There was, therefore, a gap in 
the assistance received by under-developed countries and 
that gap had to be filled. Those remarks applied particu­
larly to territories which were really under-developed 
and not to territories which, already developed to some 
extent, required finance for further development. 

17. It was essential to draw a clear distinction between 
the two types of financial needs and to realize that 
projects with no direct financial return would call for 
a large volume of assistance from countries which were 
able to render such aid, and that such assistance would 
in fact have to be rendered either by outright gift or 
by loans carrying no interest. Indeed, experience showed 
that under-developed countries were usually unable to 
bear the heavy charges of capital repayment and that 
assistance to them generally meant an outright grant. 

18. That fact had to be faced if the United Nations 
really wished to help the under-developed territories. 
He suggested therefore that the Committee should con­
sider the problem under two headings : first, in what 
way could the United Nations assist the under-developed 
countries to obtain finance for projects which had a 
direct return; and secondly, how were those countries 
to obtain finance for projects which had no direct 
financial return? The solution of the first problem should 
not be particularly difficult, but the second would be 
extremely complex and would entail sacrifices for alL 

19. Mr. ZOLOTAS (Greece) said that although three 
years.had elapsed since the United Nations had begun 
studymg the problem of the development of economi­
cally under-developed areas, it could not yet claim to 
have reached concrete conclusions. The subject still 
needed more clarification and a more realistic approach. 
The United Nations would fail in its task if all its 
studies merely ended in a few broad recommenda­
tions-it also had to indicate practical measures to 
achieve economic development. 

20. It was now recognized by all that the economic 
development of u~der-developed areas was imperative, 
not only because 1t was a pre-requisite to raising the 
standard of living of hundreds of millions of people 
but also because it would ensure the steady growth of 
world economy as a whole and help to promote equili­
brium in internat.ional trade. It was clear, therefore, 
that the economtc development of under-developed 
areas was not only in the interests of the under-devel­
oped countries themselves; it was equally in the interests 
of the developed countries which could assist in that 
development. Highly developed countries now realized 
that financial and technical assistance to the under­
developed areas also contributed to the stability of their 
own economies and of the world economy as a whole. 



10 General Assembly-Filth Session-Second Committee 

21. The development of the economically under-devel­
oped areas was commonly regarded as a technical and 
financial problem. It should be remembered, however, 
that bad organization could result in a wasteful use of 
funds and in the deterioration rather than the improve­
ment of the economic position. Absence of organization 
in the under-developed countries was one of the main 
obstacles to their development. Furthermore, there was 
an increasing trend towards bureaucracy and a lack 
of the necessary spirit of enterprise and initiative. There 
was also the lack of adequate credit institutions for the 
mobilization of domestic savings and their use for eco­
nomic development, and the lack of adequate statistical 
and technical information and accurate surveys of avail­
able natural resources. If nothing was done to improve 
those organizational factors, technical and financial as­
sistance would not secure sound economic development. 

22. A new spirit altogether, in administration as well 
as in other fields, was needed to achieve rapid and 
sound economic development. In that connexion he 
wished to mention fou r specific points: 

23. First, governmental administration should discard 
routine and bureaucracy and should become an organ 
of initiative, the more so as rapid progress in backward 
countries could be achieved only if the State took the 
lead. 

24. Secondly, the organization of the banking and 
credit system should ensure the most advantageous use 
of domestic savings fo r the purposes of economic 
development. 

25. Thirdly, there was need to promote the technical 
education and technical training of the population. 

26. Fourthly, it was essential that development pro­
grammes should be well integrated into carefully bal­
anced general economic plans, because otherwise they 
ran the risk of remaining a dead letter. 

27. Development programmes themselves should be 
properly balanced and should call for iuvestment ex­
penditure which was within the capacity of the country 
concerned, including its capacity to borrow abroad, and 
the allocation of that expenditure to different types of 
projects, in accordance with an agreed order of priority. 

28. T he org-anizational side of the problem of economic 
development had not been entirely overlooked by the 
United Nations, and its programme of technical assist­
ance included some organizational items. One such 
programme in its present form did not, however, ade­
quately cover the urgent organizational needs of under­
developed countries. The provision of fellowships and 
the organization of visitng missions were contributing 
factors to development, but they did not in themselves 
secure development. T he returning fellowship holders 
might become bureaucrats and the planned projects 
remain dormant if the organizational aspect in develop­
ment were neglected. There was moreover some dupli­
cation of activities between the United Nations and the 
various specialized agencies despite all co-ordination 
efforts. F inally, the non-participation of the Inter­
national Bank, which had gradually become one of 
the chief agents of technical assistance on its own, 
created a regrettable lacuna in the technical assistance 
programme. 

29. During the past eighteen months, the International 
Bank had been approached by some of its members for 
technical advice and assistance not directly related to 
immediate requests for loans. That combination of 
financial and technical aid was a new and promising 
aspect of the Bank's programme. I ts role in technical 
and organizational assistance would and should increase, 
but it was imperative that the Bank should participate 
in the technical assistance programme and that its work 
should be co-ordinated with that of the other partici­
pating agencies. 

30. The problem of financing economic development 
had been greatly clarified as a result of studies carried 
out by experts, the Secretariat and various organs of 
the United Nations. The constructive conclusions thus 
reached were included in resolution 294 (XI) of the 
Economic and Social Council. That resolution pointed 
out the primary importance of mobilizing domestic 
savings for development and creating conditions which 
would attract the participation of foreign private capi­
tal; it stated the principle that the financing of economic 
development should not be directed exclusively to self­
liquidating projects and also that, in estimating the 
amount of external finance required for development 
projects, consideration should be given not only to the 
direct cost of any project but also to the increased need 
for foreign funds resulting indirectly from the imple­
mentation of such projects. 

31. Those principles might seem self-evident. Yet, 
they had not been recognized as such only a few years 
previously, and their general recognition constituted in 
itself great achievement. Recommendations and princi­
ples, however, could not suffice for the effective financ­
ing of economic development. According to the Food 
and Agriculture Organization, the plans of under-de­
veloped countries would call for about $4,000 million 
of international investment each year. What were the 
possibilities of meeting that amount of funds from exist­
ing investment channels? The flow of capital from pri­
vate foreign sources was restricted because of the polit­
ical and economic insecurity prevailing in the world 
and because of the unfortunate experience of private 
lenders during the previous two decades. A gradual 
i~provement, however, might be achieved by the adop­
tion, by both t?e lending and the borrowing cotmtrie;;, 
of measures ~1med at encouraging I?rivate foreign in­
vestments. H1ghly developed countnes might have to 
sustain full employment by promoting the export of 
capital goods by means of credits to under-developed 
countries. Despite all those measures, however no con­
siderable expansion of foreign private investme;1ts could 
be expected for some time to come. 

32. Inter-governmental lending had been very exten­
si':e during the po~t-~ar period and represented the 
ch1e~ source of fore1gn mvestment, but it was used pri­
manly to help the reconstruction of war-dama.,ed coun­
tries. As far as the under-developed countries ~ere con­
cerned, the most important governmental lending insti­
tut~on was the United States Export-Import Bank, 
wh1ch had already granted them substantial credits. As 
its lending authority was limited to $3,500 million and 
as $2,500 million had already been lent, the remainin<r 
balance was small in comparison with the needs of th~ 
tm~er-developed countries. It would appear that the 
Umted States Government was contemplating plans for 



ll9th Meeting-9 October 1950 11 

the direct and indirect expansion of the Bank's activ­
ities. Since the United States was the largest creditor 
country, such expansion would be of very great impor­
tance to all under-developed countries, the more that the 
lending regulations of that Bank were by far the most 
favourable for such countries. It should not be forgot­
ten, however, that the Export-Import Bank was the 
agency of one single Government and that an expan­
sion in its development loans could not of itself suffice 
to fill the gap in development financing. 

33. The International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development was the only international financial insti­
tution which provided funds for development. Up to 1 
September 1950, it had been able to grant loans totalling 
$966 million. That amount, which had been distributed 
over a period of almost four years, was very small when 
compared with the annual needs of under-developed 
countries. It was true that the Bank's lending capacity 
might be expanded if it could raise funds on the Ameri­
can market up to the amount of the United States sub­
scription and if it were authorized by the major devel­
oped countries to utilize their capital subscription. As 
matters stood, however, a major extension of the Bank's 
operations could not be expected. Even if such an ex­
tension did take place, the lending capacity of the Bank 
would be inadequate to meet the essential capital needs 
of the under-developed countries. Moreover, the Bank's 
Constitution restricted its activities mainly to specific 
self-liqui?ating pr?jects. The Bank had tried to adopt 
a more hberal pohcy, but the efforts of its administra­
tion to free itself from the restrictions of its Constitu­
tion had not been entirely successful. 

34. As had been emphasized by the Sub-Commission 
on Ec?no;nic Deve!opment, a .series of low-yielding, 
slow-y~eldmg and ~Igh-cost proJects required financing 
at lower or at no mterest rates and longer maturities 
than were now available. Under its Constitution, the 
Bank. could not fina_nce such programmes, although they 
constituted economic and social overhead projects. 

35. For all those reasons there was general agreement 
that the Bank should be transformed from an institu­
tiOt; whic? relied m~inly on private lending into one 
which rehed on public lending. It had been suggested 
that the Bank should be empowered to obtain funds bv 
borrowing from governments and to lend to goverr;­
n:ents for general development purposes. That sugges­
tion was based not only on the urgent needs of under­
developed countries, but also on the need to establish a 
sound basis for international economic relations. In­
deed, w~rld e<:onomy as a whole depended largely on a 
?ubstan~ml and s~eady flow ~f capital from the leading 
mdustnal countnes. He beheved, therefore, that this 
proposal constituted a sound basis for the solution of 
one of the most important and urgent problems of the 
world. 

36. Mr. ABDEL-RAZEK (Egypt) noted the exten­
?ion of act~vit.y by the United Nations and the special­
Ized agencies m the field of economic and social devel­
opment and their efforts to put into execution the con­
tinuing programme of technical assistance to under­
developed areas under resolution 200 (III) of the Gen­
e~l Ass~mbly and the expanded programme of tech­
meal assistance under resolution 304 (IV). He added 
that Egypt had been one of the Member States which 

had profited by the execution of the regular programme 
in the economic and social fields and that it had con­
tributed to the financing of the expanded programme. 

37. The last paragraph of the draft resolution con­
tained in paragraph 6 of document A/1359 and sub­
mitted by the Council for the General Assembly's con­
sideration recommended that requests for technical as­
sistance which could not be financed with funds pro­
vided in the regular budget of the United Nations 
should be eligible for financing from the special account 
for technical assistance. That special account, however, 
was not sufficient to finance at the same time both the 
expandeq and the continuing programmes. Therefore, 
in spite of the limited resources of the United Nations, 
the possibility should be considered of increasing the 
allocation for the regular programme in the 1951 budget. 
The General Assembly had recommended the establish­
ment of a credit of $539,000 for that purpose in 1950, 
which sum had later been reduced to $508,420, owing 
to the devaluation of certain currencies. The sum pro­
vided in the 1951 budget should therefore he at least 
$539,000 and the necessary savings could be secured in 
other chapters of the budget. Moreover, too great reli­
ance could not be placed on the special account since it 
consisted largely of voluntary contributions, the volume 
of which would depend on the financial situation of the 
participating countries. 

38. In ~e implementation of the expanded programme 
of techmcal assistance, the following essential points 
must ~e borne in mind : (a) the general principles 
stated m the first part of annex I to resolution 222 A 
(IX) of the Council must be respected ; (b) the selec­
tion of. experts should be made, in agreement with the 
beneficiary countries, before the conclusion of the agree­
ments between those countries and the organization 
concerned regarding the provision of technical aid · (c) 
the most equitable distribution of technical assistance 
among recipient countries must be aimed at, taking due 
account of geographical distribution and of the area 
population and revenue, rather than of the contribution' 
of the recipient countries. ' 

39 .. The Ge!leral Assembly and the Economic and 
Socml Council had often emphasized the need for na­
tional and international measures to encourage foreign 
investm~nt in C:ountries which were in the process of 
completmg thetr development. The United Nations 
r~C:ognized that a mo.re rapid incre~se in the produc­
tivity of such countrtes was essentml to increase the 
level of productive employment in the industrialized 
countries and raise the standard of living of peoples 
as well as to promote the development of the world 
economy as a whole. So far the total volume of the 
domestic ~nancia~ resources of countries in the process 
of c?mpletmg their development. and of the foreign capi­
tal mvested had not been sufficient to ensure economic 
development at the desired speed. An acceleration of 
the economic development of such countries therefore 
required not only more effective and sustained mobili­
zation of domestic savings, but also a more substantial 
and stable contribution of foreign capital. For those 
reasons, the Economic and Social Council had devoted 
part of its eleventh session to a study of the question 
and had adopted resolution 294 (XI). 

40. In spite, however, of good-will on the part of bor­
rowers or lenders, there remained such obstacles as : 



12 General Assembly-Fifth Session-Second Committee 

the impossibility of being able to count on ~oreign P.ri­
vate investment for a sufficiently long penod, the n~­
adequacy of available foreign i':'vestment, whether I?n­
vate, governmental or international, for the finan.cmg 
of those projects which, alt~ough they ha~ no direct 
financial return were essentJal fo r economic develop­
ment because they indirectly affected the producti~ity 
and the national revenue of under-developed countn es, 
and the impossibility of counting on. forei~ financing 
for heavy industries. To .m~et those ~Ifficulties, the Eco­
nomic and Social CounCil, m resolution 294 (XI ) , had 
recommended certain measures which Mr. Abdel-Razek 
analysed. 

4 1. It was thus evident that the financing of economic 
development was h indered not only by inadequacy of 
capital, but also by lack of mut~al confide~ce between 
countries and by such unproductive expenditure as ex­
penditure on armam ents. 

42 H e therefore believed that the only effective meth­
od. of encouraging international assis~ance and ~~e in­
vestment of foreign capital. was to. s~ttsfy t.he l~gittmate 
desire of the small count n es to hmtt fore1gn mfiuence 
on their territory, while also providing lending coun­
tries with adequate security and reasonable profit for 
their loans. For that purpose, the authors of the report 
on Natiot~al and International Measures for Ftdl Em­
ployment had stressed the necessity of amending the 
Statutes of the International Monetary F und and the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and Develop­
ment so as to place at their disposal resources sufficient 
to enable them to expand their activities. 

43. M r. Abdel-Razek then reviewed resolution 308 
(IV) of the General Assembly on ful) employment, ~nd 
the report drawn up in accordance w1th that resolution. 
H e noted, however, that the report had not studi.ed 
problems relating to the interests of the small COlJ!ltnes 
in detail and that the question of unemployment m the 
developed countries was neither serious nor urgent at 
the present time. It ·therefore appeared, and he would 
be glad to receive confirmation of that point, that t~e 
principal aim of the report was to encourage certam 
countries to combat domestic unemployment so as to 
encourage their impor ts and favour the. inve?tment ?f 
their capital abroad so that other countnes mtght be m 
a position to re-constitute their foreign currency re~ 
serves and bring about equilibrium in their balance of 
payment s. 

44. At all events, he was glad to note the adoption by 
the Economic and Social Council of resolutions 290 
(XI ) on full employment and 295 (XI ) on the o~ga.ni­
zation of the Economic and Employment ComrrussJOn 
and its two sub-commissions. 

45. Although not a member of the Economic and 
Social Council, Egypt had followed the Council's ef­
forts and activities in the field of economic development 
very closely, and had devoted itself to a vast. programJ!le 
of reforms intended to promote the econom1c and soc.tal 
development of the country and to raise the standard 
of living of its people. Mr. Abdel-Razek mentioned a 
number of those reforms, such as the establishment of 
two new Ministries; the issuing of a new law on social 
security ; the encouragement of the import of food and 
other basic products; projects designed to increase the 
agricultural productivity of the country and to promote 

its industrialization ; government control of credit and 
exchange, and encouragement of foreign trade. 

46. In spite of national and internation~ efforts ~or 
economic development, the world was still suffenng 
from the consequences of the Second W orld War and 
was still far from achieving all the objectives of the 
United Nations Charter. There was still chronic dis­
equilibrium in trade and in balance of payments. T he 
Fund and the Bank had not yet been able to achieve 
the aims fo r which they had been established.. The 
Havana Charter had not yet been ratified by the major­
ity of Member States, exchange and commercial con­
trols had therefore been maintained, with the result that 
in spite of the disadvantages of bilateral agreements, 
the majori ty of countries had continued to conclude 
them. Disequilibrium in the balance of payments, par­
ticularly in relation to dollar countries, was continually 
growing worse. 

47. In spite of the drastic measures already taken, it 
appeared that the balance of payments problem could 
only be solved if countries could obtain goods and serv­
ices outside the dollar area, or if the United States were 
to ma.ke possible a larger dollar contribution from those 
countries by a reduction in customs, tariffs and by in­
creased investments abroad designed to foster world 
economic development. 

48. If effective solutions which would promote multi­
lateral trading agreements and meet the scarcity of for ­
eign exchange could not be found the efforts of the 
various countries would necessari ly turn towards en­
couragement of autarky and the taking of exceptional 
measures which would hinder world economic develop­
ment and prosperity. 

49. But in spite of the difficulties in the way of the 
swift rehabilitation of the world, people continued to 
have confidence in the future of the U nited Kations. 
Experience had shown that with good-will and a spirit 
of sacrifice the true interests of the whole world were 
not irreconcilable with the legitimate national aspira­
tions of peoples. 

50. H e was therefore in complete agreement with the 
ideas stated in the last paragraph of the Secretary­
General's introduction to his last Annual Report4 and 
hoped that the Economic and Social Council would con­
tinue its efforts to draw up a boldly conceived pro­
gramme of mutual aid for technical assistance and inter­
national investment. He also noted that it would be 
difficult to implement such a programme unless it was 
based on the principle of equal rights and respect for 
freedom and until countries were in a position to di­
minish their unproductive expenditure and lighten the 
burden of armaments production. 

51. M r. STADKI K (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re­
public) said that the problem of the economic develop­
ment of under-developed countries, which had been be­
fore the United Nations since its foundation, was a 
most u rgent and vital one, affecting as it did the lives of 
millions of people in the under-developed count ries. Im­
provement in the situation would be possible only if 
those countr ies ceased to be an appendage to the de-

• See O{fidal Records of the General Assetnbly, Fifth Session, 
Supplement No. 1. 



ll9th Meeting-9 October 1950 13 

veloped countries, mere economic outlets and sources 
of cheap labour. The existence of the problem was due 
to the policy of economic development carried on by the 
monopolistic capitalist countries for their own selfish 
interests. 

52. The Charter provided for co-operation with under­
developed countries to assist them in becoming econom­
ically independent and the general principles of the 
Charter were based on the provision that organizations 
giving assistance should endeavour to promote economic 
and political independence and to ensure a higher level 
of economic and social well-being. 

53. Those ends could be achieved only if economic 
assistance was given on terms ensuring the national 
sovereignty of the requesting countries. The interests 
of demanding countries must be taken into account and 
economic assistance should be proffered only when re­
quested. It should not be made conditional on demands 
affecting national sovereignty. 

54. Economic assistance should promote the develop­
ment of national industries and agriculture. That could 
be successfully effected only if certain government meas­
ures were taken which would create favourable condi­
tions for the development of young industries. There 
had been attempts to penetrate under-developed coun­
tries for non-humanitarian purposes; the United Na-

Printed in U.S.A. 

tions must strongly oppose any efforts to exploit eco­
nomic assistance for selfish ends. In that connexion, 
:Mr. Stadnik quoted an article from Harper's Magazine 
of December 1949 by Milo Perkins, former Executive 
Director of the United States Board of Economic War­
fare, to the effect that as a result of its agreements on 
capital investment with other countries the United 
States must send missions to investigate the possibili­
ties of developing industries and agriculture in those 
countries and of purchasing strategic materials from 
them. 

55. Such an article was indicative of the policy of 
world subjugation pursued by the United States under 
the pretext of giving technical assistance ; it showed 
that the capitalist and monopolistic countries were at­
tempting to strengthen their economic and political 
dominion over the under-developed countries by ob­
taining cheap raw materials and strategic materials. 

56. He once more emphasized that technical assistance 
must have as its aim the full economic and political 
independence of the recipient countries. That could be 
achieved through judicious action by the United Na­
tions and its organs, which were called upon to play a 
decisive role in strengthening the under-developed 
countries. 

The meeting rose at 1 p.m. 

B-39334-0ctober 1950-3,400 




